
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, November 15, 2016 @ 6:00 p.m.

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the
meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Finance Committee (10/11/2016), Committee of the Whole (10/7/2016, 10/13/2016, &

10/27/2016), Board of Appeals Committee (5/5/2016), Commission on Aging (10/4/2016),
Redevelopment Authority (9/14/2016), Tree Commission (10/12/2016), and Library Board
(9/21/2016)

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. November 1, 2016 Common Council Meeting Minutes

OLD BUSINESS

NONE

NEW BUSINESS

5. R-123-2016- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Jefte Galvin for Morelia’s Cafe
at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission meets November 14,
2016)

6. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, November 15, 2016 @ 6:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the 


meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1.  Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 


2.   Minutes and Reports:  


 Finance Committee (10/11/2016), Committee of the Whole (10/7/2016, 10/13/2016, & 


10/27/2016), Board of Appeals Committee (5/5/2016), Commission on Aging (10/4/2016), 


Redevelopment Authority (9/14/2016), Tree Commission (10/12/2016), and Library Board 


(9/21/2016) 


 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. November 1, 2016 Common Council Meeting Minutes 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE 


 


NEW BUSINESS 
 


5. R-123-2016- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Jefte Galvin for Morelia’s Cafe 


at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission meets November 14, 


2016) 


 


6. ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 


information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us






 
 


Meeting of the:  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL 


Date/Time:  Thursday, October 6, 2016 @ 6:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2
nd


 Floor Public Safety Building) 321 S Fourth Street 


Members:  Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 


Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski,  


Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, Vacant, Mayor Olson 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Council President Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that 8 alderpersons were present, with Engelberger, Johnson, and 


Majewski being absent. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


2017 Executive Budget Presentation 


 


Mayor Olson gave a detailed overview of the 2017 City of Stoughton Budget. She explained that the 


budget, as always is a service based budget. This budget supports implementation of Phase 2 of the 


Springsted Wage Compensation Study. Olson explained that the Compensation Study would also move 


three department heads to the median wage range, which reflects the current market.  


Olson stated that this budget also supports the creation of an Information Technology Director that would 


benefit all City departments and supports a Fleet Mechanic to work with our Fleet Manager within the 


Department of Public Works. As a reminder it also supports the recent movement of the HR Generalist 


Position from part-time to full-time and the reorganization of the Opera House staff.  She noted that the 


budget would allow for Sunday hours at the Library and would continue economic development 


initiatives. Those initiatives would include converting the Redevelopment Authority along with the 


Housing Authority into a Community Development Authority. She then broke down the actual costs of 


the aforementioned budget proposals. 


She explained that this budget does not support the options for a new part time library employee, a new 


police officer, new police clerical position, two new Public Works employees, nor a new full time fire 


employee. She noted that at the next Committee of the Whole meeting, each department head will be 


presenting their individual budget line by line. 


Mayor Olson also reviewed the following increased revenues to support the proposed changes: 


 Increase in Stare Expenditure Restraint of almost $17,000 


 Utility Water and Electric Pilots have increased due to new infrastructure at Kettle Park West and 


Nordic Ridge by $100,000 


 Net New Construction increased by 1.9% or $133,000 


 Building, Electric and Plumbing fees have increased by $15,000 


 


 







Recommend approval of the 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan  


 


Finance Director Sullivan gave a detailed outline of the Capital Improvement Plan Budget. She explained 


that the CIP would call for approximately $2.8 million in building streets, stormwater, water and utility 


projects, however with a large expense of building the new Public Works building in 2018, they have 


combined the 2017 and 2018 CIP expenditures which would equal approximately $5 million. She 


explained that with the increase of net new construction in the City, the mill rate decreased. She noted that 


that decrease would allow the taxes on a home that is valued at $100,000 to decrease by $17.00. 


 


Council president Swadley explained that while there was currently a quorum one Council member would 


have to leave. Mayor Olson asked that the Compensation Study be discussed first. 


 


 


 


Recommend approval of the Springsted Compensation Plan- Phase II  


 


Human Resources Director Gillingham gave an overview of the City employees who either self-


terminated or retired in 2016. Gillingham explained that the first phase of the Compensation Study, which 


included any employee found to be under the minimum wage scale for their position grade to be brought 


up to the minimum.  


 


Lawrence left the meeting at 6:33 p.m. 


 


Motion by Boersma, to adjourn the meeting of the Committee of the Whole, second by O’Connor. 


Meeting adjourned at 6:34 p.m.  


 


 







Meeting of the: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL
Date/Time: Thursday, October 13, 2016 @ 6:00 p.m.
Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor Public Safety Building) 321 S Fourth Street
Members: Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson,


Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski,
Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, Vacant, Mayor Olson


CALL TO ORDER


Council President Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that 8 alderpersons were present with Majewski, Truehl, and
Lawrence being absent and excused.


NEW BUSINESS


Approval of the October 6, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes.


Motion by Engelberger, to approve the minutes of the October 6, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting,
second by Jenson. Motion carried 8-0.


2017 Executive Budget Presentation


Mayor Olson gave a detailed overview of the 2017 City of Stoughton Budget. She explained that the


budget, as always is a service based budget. This budget supports implementation of Phase 2 of the


Springsted Wage Compensation Study. Olson explained that the Compensation Study would also move


three department heads to the median wage range, which reflects the current market.


Olson stated that this budget also supports the creation of an Information Technology Director that would


benefit all City departments and supports a Fleet Mechanic to work with our Fleet Manager within the


Department of Public Works. As a reminder it also supports the recent movement of the HR Generalist


Position from part-time to full-time and the reorganization of the Opera House staff. She noted that the


budget would allow for Sunday hours at the Library and would continue economic development


initiatives. Those initiatives would include converting the Redevelopment Authority along with the


Housing Authority into a Community Development Authority. It would also fund the Landmarks pilot


grant program request. She then broke down the actual costs of the aforementioned budget proposals.


She explained that this budget does not support the options for a new part time library employee, a new


police officer, new police clerical position, two new Public Works employees, nor a new full time fire


employee. She noted that at the next Committee of the Whole meeting, each department head will be


presenting their individual budget line by line.


Kittleson inquired if the IT Director position could be contracted out versus in-house staff and if that


change would present any significant savings. He further asked that if it did have savings, could that


money be used towards another police officer. Mayor Olson noted that with the high impact on IT on all







of the City departments she wants to have someone available to fix any potential issues within the City, so


that staff wouldn’t have to wait for a resolve.


Recommend approval of the Springsted Compensation Plan- Phase II


Human Resources Director Gillingham gave a detailed outline of the Springsted Compensation Study.
She explained that phase II would be the next step in the study, which would bring all employees up by
2% to reflect the current market rate. She also noted that this plan would bring the three department heads
up to the median wage, which would also reflect the current market rate as well, and it would eliminate
any kind of cost of living adjustments.


Gillingham explained the health and dental insurance increases. She noted that the rate increases were rate
locked at the time that the contract was funded. Boersma did remind the Committee that in 2015 the City
did save a significant amount of money by switching to an HMO plan. Gillingham noted that City
employees pay 3% of the monthly premium, which means that an individual pays $16.18 and a family
plan costs $42.07 per month. Swadley stated that he felt that the comparison of what private and public
sector employees pay is drastic. He inquired if City employees should be paying more, to help the City
save money. Gillingham explained that the fact that the City does have such a low cost to the employee is
one of her only recruitment tools because the wage scale in the public sector is drastically lower than that
of the private sector. She went on to explain the 20% decrease in the Workers Compensation costs and
noted that the City is working to make sure that any employee who is cleared for light duty is able to get
back to work, even if not in their department.


Review and recommend approval of the 2017 General Fund Budget


Finance Director Sullivan gave a detailed overview of the City’s 2017 line item budget. She outlined the
City’s revenues and noted that most of all of the revenues stayed consistent, with the largest increases
coming from the property taxes and the utilities pilot programs. Each department head then presented a
detailed overview of their department’s line item budget. Boersma agreed with Alderperson Kittleson’s
previous request, that the City should explore using an outside IT company versus having a full-time staff
person. Planning Director Scheel noted that the amount of interfacing that the different agencies need to
have, would require one person to familiarize themselves with the system as a whole. The proposed
budget would allow for $150,000 to cover the cost of hiring an IT person.


The Committee of the Whole recessed at 8:32 p.m.


The Committee of the Whole reconvened at 8:50 p.m.


The department heads then continued with their detailed presentations of their line item budget. Finance
Director Sullivan explained the transfers to the special funds. Mayor Olson did a final highlight of what
this budget will allow for.


Recommend approval of the 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan


The Committee of the Whole recessed at 9:48 p.m.


The Committee of the Whole reconvened at 10:00 p.m.


Finance Director Sullivan gave a detailed presentation of the Capital Budget. She noted that this year’s
CIP budget would be approximately $2.8 million. She noted that in 2018, the CIP budget would be over
$10 million to accommodate the new Public Works building. She noted that to lighten the burden of the







borrowing on 2018, some of the CIP items that would be in 2018 will occur in 2017. This change would
reflect money set aside for 2017 for equipment along with Parks & Streets maintenance projects. This
movement of projects would change the City’s 2017 CIP budget to $5.8 million. City staff then gave a
detailed overview of the CIP projects for 2017 through 2021.


Motion by Jenson, to recommend approval of the CIP Budget to the City Council, second by Engelberger.
Motion carried 8-0.


Motion by O’Connor, to recommend approval of the Springsted Compensation Plan- Phase II to the City
Council, second by Boersma. Motion carried 8-0.


Motion by Jenson, to recommend approval of the General Fund Budget to the City Council, second by
Hirsch. Motion carried 8-0.


Future Agenda Items
- The next Budget Meeting will be held on October 27, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the Special
Funds


ADJOURNMENT


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Committee of the Whole, second by Boersma. Motion
carried 8-0. The meeting of the Committee of the Whole adjourned at 10:49 p.m.







Meeting of the: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL
Date/Time: Thursday, October 27, 2016 @ 6:00 p.m.
Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor Public Safety Building) 321 S Fourth Street
Members: Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Michael Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson,


Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski,
Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl, Mayor Olson


CALL TO ORDER


Council President Swadley called the meeting of the Committee of the Whole to order at 6:02 p.m.


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that eleven alders were present, with Engelberger being absent.


NEW BUSINESS


Approval of the October 13, 2016 Committee of the Whole minutes


Motion by O’Connor, to approve the October 13, 2016 Committee of the Whole minutes, second by
Majewski. Motion carried 11-0.


Recommend approval of the 2017 Stormwater Budget


Planning Director Scheel gave a detailed overview of the Stormwater Utility Budget.


Engelberger joined the meeting at 6:06 p.m.


Finance Diorector Sullivan noted that the first year that the Stormwater Utility was created was 2013.
Public Works Director Hebert explained that the stormwater pond maintenance balance had decreased by
$10,000 due to that maintenance being budgeted through the CIP budget.


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the 2017 Stormwater Budget, second by Jenson. Motion carried 12-0.


Recommend approval of the 2017 Opera House Budget


Opera House Director Brehm gave a detailed overview of the 2017 Opera House budget.
Motion by Boersma, to approve the 2017 Opera House budget, second by Lawrence. Motion carried 12-0.


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the 2017 Stoughton Utilities (SU) Budget
and Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).


Utilities Director Kardasz gave a thorough analysis of the 2017 Utilities Budget and the Capital
Improvements Plan. He explained how the Utilities Department is planning for future infrastructure
inclusion.
Motion by Engelberger, to approve the 2017 Utilities Budget and the Capital Improvements Plan, second
by Truehl.







Majewski noted that several of his constituents had to pay to move their water meters at the home owners’
expense. He was disappointed with the fact that the Utilities didn’t offer these residents a program to help
pay for this change.


Motion by Majewski, to amend the 2017 Stoughton Utilities Budget by allocating $25,000 to reimburse
the 8 residents who were required to pay for the movement of their water meters, second by Truehl.


Truehl asked if this was the first year to happen or if there might be more customers that might need to
move their meters as well. Kardasz noted that he didn’t identify any more problematic meters within the
system, currently. Swadley asked that the Utilities Committee have a discussion on how to handle these
types of situations moving forward. Engelberger explained that the Utilities Department is bound by the
laws of the DNR and the PSC, and the Utilities followed the law on the movement of the meters.
Majewski explained that the meters were on public right of way and wondered why these improvements
weren’t included in the Capital Outlay Plan.


Boersma left the meeting at 6:53 p.m.


Lawrence and Jenson agreed that this issue should be debated by the Utilities Committee before the
Council can move forward with a decision. Swadley noted that even if the amendment isn’t approved
tonight, the budget can be amended at a later date.


Amendment of the motion failed on a roll call vote of 4-7, with Lawrence, Truehl, Bartlett, Engelberger,
Swadley, Jenson, and O’Connor voting noe.


Lawrence left the meeting at 7:11 p.m.


Committee discussion encompassed the overall 2017 Utilities budget and the future of possibly burying
the electric lines in the older areas of the City. Swadley noted that when the CIP projects are coming up,
that the Utilities notify the residents of these projects before a notice of assessment is sent out.


Original motion was re-read. Motion carried 10-0.


Recommend approval of the 2017 Library Budget


Library Director MacDonald gave a general overview on how public libraries are funded in Wisconsin
and how the Stoughton Library is funded as well. He noted that if there are any unused funds at the year
of the year the Library is able to keep those funds to use at a later date. He explained that his budget
would also allow for the library to be open on Sundays. He noted that there was an increase in the Capital
Budget to replace the one older self-check machines.


Motion by Jenson, to remove the $14,000 for Sunday hours from the Stoughton Library Budget, no
second was offered and the motion failed for a lack of second.


Mtion by Engelberger, to approve the 2017 Library Budget, second by Kittleson. Motion carried 10-0.


Recommend approval of the 2017 EMS Budget


EMS Director Schimelfenig introduced herself and gave an overall review of the 2017 EMS Budget. She
explained that the surrounding townships are contributing to the EMS budget. Their contribution is based
on the population that is serviced by the EMS, per capita. She noted that their contract would be for three
years and that the cost would increase yearly by five percent.







Motion by Jenson, to approve the 2017 EMS Budget, second by Truehl. Motion carried 10-0.


Future Agenda Items
None


ADJOURNMENT


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Committee of the Whole, second by Hirsch. Motion
carried 10-0. The meeting of the Committee of the Whole adjourned at 7:53 p.m.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
October 11, 2016 – 5:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Paul Lawrence, Regina Hirsch, Pat O’Connor, Tim Swadley, and Mayor Olson


Others Present:
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Planning Director Rodney Scheel, and Michael
Engelberger


Absent and Excused:
None


Call to order:
Chairperson Lawrence called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.


Communications:
Finance Director Sullivan explained that the next budget meeting will be held on
Thursday, October 13, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. and that all should attend.


Contingency Report:
The report was reviewed and no action was taken.


Finance Committee Minutes of September 27, 2016:
Motion by O’Connor, to approve the Finance Committee minutes of September 27,
2016, second by Hirsch. Motion carried unanimously 5-0.


Review status of current City of Stoughton Tax Incremental Finance Districts:
Finance Director Sullivan gave on overview of each active Tax Incremental District (TID)
to the committee. While reviewing the TIDs she noted that TID#4, the downtown district,
lost approximately $3 million in value because the Livsriese building reported tax
exemption and that economic change also contributed to the decrease. Even with the
decrease in the value, TID#4 is very healthy. That district also holds the money for the
revolving loan fund. She went through the annual TID audit report, which details the
revenues and expenditures of each TID. If a district has left over money when it closes,
that money is split up between the different taxing jurisdictions. Also, if a municipality
wanted to use a TID as a donor to another district, the other taxing jurisdictions would
have to give consent. Swadley noted that certain TIDs have some borrowing debt and
questioned if those could be paid off with the increment already accrued. Finance
Director Sullivan explained that the debt could be paid off, but not until the payoff date
that the note would indicate.


The Committee decided to review the annual audit report again for 2016.


Discussion and action regarding the use of TIF funding to expand Rotary Park:
Alderperson Lawrence explained that this request had come from him along with the
Parks & Recreation Committee. He stated that Rotary Park is becoming a popular place
for event gatherings and for people to visit. He wanted the Committee to consider using
TIF money to expand that area by buying the King building and using that space to







possibly build a shelter and bathrooms. The Committee noted that they would like to
see the Rotary Club match funds with the City to fund the expansion. The Finance
Committee directed staff to move forward with the project concept and to work with the
Rotary Club to design a plan.


Review and possible action regarding the City of Stoughton Municipal Attorney
Requests for Proposals and to discuss the possible negotiation of a development
agreement with North American Fur Auctions:


Motion by Hirsch, to move into closed session, second by Swadley. Motion carried 5-0.
The Finance Committee moved into closed session at 6:04 p.m.


Motion by O’Connor, to reconvene in open session, second by Swadley. Motion carried
5-0. The Finance Committee reconvened into open session at 6:46 p.m.


Motion by Lawrence, to move forward with interviews of potential municipal attorneys at
the October 25, 2016 Common Council meeting, second by Swadley. Motion carried 5-
0.


Motion by Swadley, to move the discussion and possible negotiation of a development
agreement with North American Fur Auctions to the Common Council, second by
O’Connor. Motion carried 5-0.


Future Agenda Items:
 TIF Request for Kettle Park West Phase 2


Adjournment
Motion by Swadley, to adjourn the meeting of the Finance Committee, second by
O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 5-0. The Finance Committee meeting adjourned
at 6:47 p.m.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\11-15-2016\Committee Minutes\5-5-16 minutes.doc


Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes
Thursday, May 5, 2016, 5:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton WI.


Members Present: Russ Horton, Chair; David Erdman, Secretary; Bob McGeever; Bob Barnett, Vice-
Chair; Jeff Cunningham, Alt #1 and Donna Vogel, Alt #2.
Members Absent: Aaron Thomson
Staff: Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator
Guests: Terri Zeman and Jamie Bush


1. Call meeting to order. Horton called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.


Roll call was taken by Interim Secretary Donna Vogel.


David Erdman, Secretary arrived at 5:03pm.


2. Consider approval of the Board of Appeals minutes of April 11, 2016.
Motion by McGeever to approve the minutes of April 11, 2016 as presented, 2nd by Barnett.
Motion carried 5 – 0.


3. Elect Vice-Chair.
Motion by McGeever to nominate Bob Barnett as Vice-Chair, 2nd by Erdman. Motion carried
5 – 0.


4. Elect Secretary.
Motion by McGeever to nominate David Erdman as Secretary, 2nd by Barnett. Motion carried
5 – 0.


5. Jamie Bush, owner of the property at 1017 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, has
requested a variance from zoning code sections, 78-105(4)(b)8a, “Minimum landscape surface
ratio: 25 percent” and 78-610, “Landscaping requirements for bufferyards” to allow a
building addition.
Horton introduced the request and opened the public hearing.


Jamie Bush explained the intent for variance request is to make his business more of a family
oriented restaurant than a bar so he can compete with potential new future businesses.


Barnett questioned alcohol consumption outdoors. Mr. Bush stated the plan is to have outdoor
dining including alcohol consumption.


No one registered to speak.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\11-15-2016\Committee Minutes\5-5-16 minutes.doc


Stacey gave an overview of the history of the proposed addition for Deaks and a review of the 3
tests that must be met according to state statutes for the approval of a variance as follows:


Unnecessary hardship: We believe, in this case, the ordinance does create a hardship on the
applicant since the zoning ordinance was updated after the property was originally developed. The
property originally met all zoning requirements. The addition will not add any more impervious
area than currently exists. The current bufferyard is approximately 10 feet and the landscaping and
fencing do meet the bufferyard requirements. The applicant could meet these requirements by
reducing the amount of parking which would not be a good solution for a property that is already in
need of more parking for the use.


Unique property limitation: The lot is small for this type of use within a Planned Business
district but otherwise flat and rectangular. There are no other unique property limitations related to
slope, shape or environmental issues.


Protection of the Public Interest:
There does not appear to be any real positive impacts to the public at large in relation to safety or
environmental. You could argue that aesthetically the building will be better for customers or the
public in general.


We have heard from some area neighbor’s about noise and potential traffic issues related to this
site. The conditional use permit was issued contingent on no music being allowed at the outdoor
patio area. The applicant has offered to install more plantings along the parking area to limit
vehicle lights shining on homes. There have been no real noise issues or complaints in the past that
we know of.


The applicant is trying to remain competitive for the future with other potential restaurants opening
in Stoughton.


Horton closed the public hearing.


Motion by Erdman to approve the variance request as presented, 2nd by McGeever. Motion
carried 5 – 0. (Barnett, Erdman, McGeever, Horton and Cunningham)


6. Terri Zeman, owner of the property at 524 S. Van Buren Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, has
requested a variance from zoning code section, 78-105(2)(e)8bL, ” Side lot line to accessory
structure: Four feet from property line, four feet from alley” to allow installation of a
carport.


Horton introduced the request and opened the public hearing.


Terri Zeman explained the variance request is due to the inability to construct a carport on the side
of their garage and meet the 4-foot setback rather the front of the carport would be 3 feet 2 inches
from the lot line. The carport is needed because the neighbor has large pine trees that drip sap on
their vehicles.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\11-15-2016\Committee Minutes\5-5-16 minutes.doc


Barnett questioned the location of the lot stake and the closeness of the adjacent shed. Stacey noted
there are many non-conformances in historic district such as fences and shed close to or over the lot
lines.


Erdman questioned if the carport could be moved back to meet code. Ms. Zeman stated the carport
would still be non-compliant.


No one registered to speak.


Stacey gave a review of the 3 tests that must be met according to state statutes for the approval of a
variance as follows:


Unnecessary hardship: We believe, in this case, the ordinance does not necessarily create a
hardship on the applicant. The intent of the accessory structure code section is related to having
safe and adequate separation between properties. Dripping of tree sap is not really a hardship.
Similarly, requesting a variance to keep a vehicle inside from rain or potential hail is not a
hardship.


Unique property limitation: The lot is quite large compared to other residential properties within
older areas of the community. It is fairly flat and rectangular. There is no real unique property
limitation or special condition that many other residential properties would not also have. There
are no steep slopes, the lot is not irregularly shaped and there are no wetlands or other
environmental type issues onsite.


Protection of the Public Interest: There does not appear to be any real positive impacts to the
public at large in relation to aesthetics, safety, or environmental. We have not heard from anyone
about this request. There does not appear to be any environmental, aesthetic or safety concerns
with the request. Alternatives may be to cover boats or vehicles with a cover of some sort or find
an alternative to parking in that location.


Horton closed the public hearing.


Motion by Erdman to approve the variance request as presented, 2nd by Barnett.


Horton stated there seems to be alternatives and the request does not meet the standards to be
approved so he cannot support the request.


Erdman concurs and has some concerns about approving the variance.


Motion failed 2-3 (Barnett and Cunningham voted yes; Erdman, McGeever and Horton voted no)


7. Adjournment.
Motion by McGeever to adjourn at 5:35 pm, 2nd by Horton. Motion carried 5 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,
Michael Stacey







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 14, 2016 – 5:30 p.m.  
Mayor’s Office/City Hall 


Present:  
Peter Sveum, Dan Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Steve Sletten, Ron Christianson and 
Brian Kahl  
 


Absent: 
Scott Truehl, John Kramper and Finance Director Laurie Sullivan 
  
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Paul Lawrence, Peggy Veregin and Patrick Osterbrink 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Approval of August 10, 2016 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Kahl, seconded by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the August 10, 
2016 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Communications: 
Sveum reported he has been in contact with Associated Bank about the carpet 
warehouse property that is in foreclosure.  They are aware the RDA may be interested 
in this property when it becomes available. 
 
Sveum stated he has been contacted by developers eagerly awaiting the Request for 
Proposals, so that is encouraging.     
 
There will be a TIF presentation to the community that the Stoughton Chamber will be 
having on October 25th.   
 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area Update: 


a. Overview of activity for next 6 months: 
Gary went thru the power point presentation he gave to Council about 
a month ago.  Gary reminded group of the Build Grant presentation on 
Tuesday, September 20th at noon in the Dane County Building and 
asked any RDA members that were available to please attend with 
Gary.  It was also discussed that the Park Comprehensive City Plan 
will need to be updated by May 2017 to reflect the riverbank 
improvements.  Staff will notify Tom Lynch that this will need to be 
addressed.  Discussion also took place about the power plant and 
whether it is a local and or national landmark.  Peggy Veregin, Chair 
of the Landmarks Commission, joined the discussion and gave a 
history of the power plant property and the steps she thought the RDA 
should pursue.  Discussion took place on hiring someone to 
investigate whether the property is eligible for the National Register 
and if this would be beneficial for potential developers to know about 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2016 
Page 2 
 


and help make our RFP more desirable.  Moved by Hirsch, seconded 
by Kahl to authorize Sveum and Becker to solicit historical evaluations 
for the Municipal Electric Light Plant and the Mandt Wagon Works 
building with the cost not to exceed $10,000.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   


b. Approve release of developers RFP and set deadline for 
submittal: 
Discussion took place on whether to meet with developers as a group 
or one on one and when to have the meeting take place.  It was 
decided to meet with prospective developers one on one at our next 
regularly scheduled meeting in October and to have Planning Director 
Rodney Scheel attend as well to answer any questions that may arise. 
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Kahl to approve the Request for 
Development Proposal as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.  
Becker will work with staff to have the RFP’s sent out as soon as 
possible.  


c. Approve press release: 
Discussion took place about the press release.  Moved by Kahl, 
seconded by Christianson to approve the press release as presented.  
Motion carried unanimously.    


d. Update on surveying activities: 
There are no preliminary results at this time.  Reports should be 
available sometime next week. 


 
Mill fab update: 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 
Marathon Site update: 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 
Revolving Loan Fund update: 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Mill fab and Marathon Site updates 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area update 
Meet with interested developers 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kittleson, to adjourn at 6:46 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







 1 


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 4, 2016 


Stoughton Room, Stoughton Area Senior Center 
 


Present:  Charlotte Snow, David Sharpe, Dennis Kittleson, Ros Gausman, Lou Havlik, Nancy 
Hoffman, Bob Barnett  
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn 
Absent & Excused: David Bacon, Ron Jensen, Jeanne Schwass-Long, Don Mix, Mary Onsager  
 
Call to order: Dave Sharpe called the meeting to order at 11:00 AM.   
December Minutes: Moved by B.Barnett, seconded by N.Hoffamn to approve; passed 
unanimously.   
 
Director Comments  


 Cindy thanked Nancy for helping with the display board for the Senior Expo. She took some 
of the new pictures for the display. 


 Flu shots are this Friday, they are being administered by Stoughton Hospital. 


 Staff is still difficult. Lisa Hanson hopes to be back in another month and we are still looking 
for a replacement for the township case manager. 


 We will be getting new carpet in the second floor. 


 We are looking for some additional kitchen volunteers. 
 
Strategic plan: committee work  
 
Thank you to Lou and Nan for their work putting together the draft of focus statements and 
feedback from the focus groups and staff. Each committee should meet, discuss and prioritize the 
items and then create the action plans for the Senior Center. The group agreed that all that work 
should be brought back to the Commission on Aging by January. If a committee needs input 
regarding a priority, they can always bring it back to the Commission for input. Most committees 
don’t have enough community members, but the group decided to start meeting and continue to 
find community members that might be able to help. 
 
Legislative updates 
The city budget process is still moving along. No changes for the Senior Center expected. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned: Moved by Bob Barnett, seconded by Ros Gausman to adjourn the meeting.  
Carried unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 11:45. 
Next Meeting:  Tuesday, November 1 at 11:00 a.m   
 







STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
September 21, 2016 @ 6:30 P.M.
CARNEGIE ROOM, STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY


PRESENT: Sandra Black; Sid Boersma, City Council Representative; Eric Hohol, Dane County Representative;
Petra Horst, Library Board Vice-President; Linda Schaefer, Library Board President; Paul Vande Hei, Stoughton Area
School District Representative; Mike Vienneau.
ALSO PRESENT: Richard MacDonald, Library Director; Sarah Monette, Library Administrative Assistant.


I. CALL TO ORDER. President Linda Schaefer called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. Seven Board members,
Black, Boersma, Hohol, Horst, Schaefer, Vande Hei, and Vienneau, were present, constituting a quorum.


II. REVIEW OF AGENDA. Item VIII is being tabled until the October meeting.


III. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF August  17, 2016. Moved by Boersma, second by Vienneau, to
approve the minutes as presented. Motion carried 7-0.


IV. RECOGNITION OPPORTUNITIES. The Board agreed by consensus to send a thank-you letter to Karol
Castle, who has resigned after serving two years on the Board.


V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD. Schaefer encouraged Board members to fill out the Stoughton Wellness
Coalition’s survey.


VI. CORRESPONDENCE. MacDonald shared the information about the dedication ceremony for the memorial
bricks for Marilyn Granrud and her brother Richard; a thank you note from Lauraine Snelling; a thank you note from
Joseph Skotzke; a thank you note from Bob and Marilee Emmert accompanying their annual donation in memory of
their granddaughter Linnea Beth Miller; a positive comment from patrons about the Children’s Room.


VII. EDUCATION UPDATES. Black discussed an interview she had heard with Carla Hayden, the new Director of
the Library of Congress; Boersma shared his memories of listening to “talking books” with his father, a blinded
WWII veteran.


VIII. BOARD IN-SERVICE. Tabled until the October meeting.


IX. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR August 2016.
A. Fund 215. MacDonald presented. Moved by Horst, second by Sandra, to approve the August 2016 financial


statement for Fund 215 as presented. Motion carried 7-0.
B. Fund 217. MacDonald presented. Moved by Hohol, second by Vienneau, to approve the August 2016 financial


statement for Fund 217 as presented. Motion carried 7-0.
C. Stoughton Area Community Foundation. The Board reviewed the financial statements for the SACF's pass-


through account for the Library. The statements were accepted by consensus.


X. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR September 2016.
MacDonald presented the bills lists.


A. Fund 215 (General Fund). Monette briefly described the CE course she is taking through AICPA (the
American Institute of Certified Professional Accountants). Moved by Vienneau, second by Horst, to approve
the September 2016 bills for Fund 215 as presented. Motion carried 7-0.


B. Fund 217 (Special Gift Fund). Monette explained the Library’s donation to the Stoughton Area Community
Foundation in honor of the children who exceeded the Summer Library Program’s reading goal. MacDonald
explained the payment to the Wisconsin Veterans Museum Foundation for their traveling exhibition. Moved
by Boersma, second by Vande Hei, to approve the September 2016 bills for Fund 217 as presented. Motion
carried 7-0.


XI. DIRECTOR’S REPORT.
A. Statistics. MacDonald presented the statistics for August 2016.
B. Director’s Report. In addition to his written report, MacDonald first asked if the Board wanted him to send


them a brief weekly report by email. The Board felt this was not necessary. MacDonald then reported that
Adult Services Assistant Cynthia Schlegel has attended training about dementia and will be passing on that
training to other staff so that the library may become a more dementia-friendly space. Adult Services Assistant
Amy Hynek has attended training about racial equity and social justice. Circulation for the second Sunday of
the school year was 336. MacDonald is a design judge again for the Benjamin Franklin Awards; this year his
category is three-color interiors. He reported on the Black Marigold concert held as part of the Music on the







Mezz series, and encouraged Board members to come to the Authors and Friends event on Saturday,
September 24.


XII. COMMITTEE REPORTS.
A. Finance: Did not meet.
B. Personnel: Did not meet.
C. Planning: Horst corrected the agenda; the committee met September 12, not September 5. She asked to table


the committee report until XV.C.
D. Policies: Black asked to table the committee report until XV.D,E,F.


XIII. FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY REPORT. The Friends did not meet this month. Black reminded the Board
of upcoming events: Authors and Friends on September 24; Tony Rocker on October 15; and the next Book Sale on
Victorian Holiday Weekend, December 1-3.


XIV. UNFINISHED/OLD BUSINESS.
▪ Background Checks on Potential Board Members. Black and Vande Hei reported that the Policies Committee
wished to return the issue to the Board for clarification of both procedure and objectives. Discussion followed.
Hohol felt that as a governing body in a position of public trust, the Board should require background checks.
MacDonald reminded the Board that, although the Board recommends candidates, it is the Mayor of Stoughton
who appoints Board members; Board members have no direct contact with children as part of their mandate, and
no Board member makes individual decisions about or has any personal contact with the Library’s revenues and
expenditures. Moved by Boersma, second by Black, to table indefinitely the question of background checks for
Library Board members. Motion carried 5-1, with Hohol dissenting and Vienneau abstaining.


XV. NEW BUSINESS.
A. Recommendation of new Library Board member to the Mayor. Moved by Boersma, second by Horst, to


recommend Heather Danielson for the vacant seat. Motion carried 7-0.
B. 2017 New Year’s Library Schedule. Moved by Boersma, second by Black, that the library be closed Saturday,


December 31, 2016, Sunday, January 1, 2017, and Monday, January 2, 2017, for New Year’s Day. Motion
carried 7-0.


[Vienneau left at 7:25 P.M.]


C. Purchase of Library Board Self-Assessment Questions from Tweed-Weber Inc. Horst explained that the
Planning Committee felt that Tweed-Weber’s questions were worth the $59 fee, although the committee
agreed that the Library does not need to pay for the full assessment. Moved by Black, second by Schaefer, to
buy Tweed-Weber’s Library Board self-assessment questions. Motion carried 6-0.


D. Patron Registration/Library Card Use Policy. Black and MacDonald discussed the changes to the policy.
Moved by Horst, second by Hohol, to accept the amended policy as presented. Motion carried 6-0.


E. Library Materials Use Policy. Black and MacDonald discussed the changes to the policy. Moved by Boersma
second by Horst, to accept the amended policy as presented. Motion carried 6-0.


F. Appropriate Library Behavior Policy. Black and MacDonald discussed the changes to the policy. Moved by
Black second by Horst, to accept the amended policy as presented. Motion carried 6-0.


G. G. Resolution recommending City Council passage of exemption resolution from Dane County library tax.
MacDonald presented the resolution. Moved by Horst, second by Hohol, to approve the resolution. Motion
carried 6-0.


H. Resolution Approving the Amendment to the Dane County Standards for Public Libraries. MacDonald
presented the resolution, explaining that Dane County Library Service has changed three parts of the
standards: (1) the removal of the standard for periodical subscriptions; (2) a formula to include digital items in
a library’s “items held”; (3) the adjustment of the formula for “items added” to be calculated from the standard
for “items held” rather than from a library’s actual holdings. The Library meets all of the standards. Moved by
Hohol, second by Black, to approve the resolution. Motion carried 6-0.


XVI. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS.
▪ Waiving fines for children’s and teen materials.


XVII. ADJOURNMENT. Moved by Horst, second by Vande Hei,, to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 P.M. Motion
carried 6-0.


Respectfully submitted,
Sarah Monette, Library Administrative Assistant







Tree Commission Meeting Minutes


Wednesday, October 12, 2016 at 4:30 PM


Ed Overland Room, City Hall, 381 E Main St, Stoughton


Members Present: Kevin Short, Dean Tangeman, Keith Kvalheim and Sid Boersma


Absent & Excused: Robert Kardasz & Kendall McBroom


Staff: Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Street Department Secretary Vickie Erdahl & Forester Randy
Nelson


Guests:


Call to order: Meeting called to order at 4:35 PM by Boersma. Short joined @ 4:40


1) Communications:


 Nelson & Short attended the Tree Risk Assessment Qualifications class.


 The City of Stoughton Streets & Parks Department hosted and attended a class on “Pest
Management with Pollinators in Mind” which was well attended.


 Nelson also attended the WAA Fall Conference


 Boersma stated that the new Veteran’s Memorial would be opening/dedicated on Friday,
November 11th.


 Nelson is working with the Kettle Park West Developers on planting trees. City Planning
Director Scheel is also checking construction areas for tree protection which is currently being
discussed to develop language to protect the trees and hold the contractors liable after multiple
issues with this year’s road construction.


2) Forestry Reports: The account has a low balance. The High School failed to pay a $600 bill and with
the change of teachers up at the school, we have no one to contact to get paid. There is a new Ag
teacher at the school who as interest in the program and will be invited to attend a Tree Commission
meeting. Nelson is currently working on calculating the board footage that is on hand – he thinks
approximately 2700 sq. feet. Asleson’s continues to have a lot of interest in selling the boards for us.
The committee would like to find other ways to sell the wood to bring up the account balance and be
able to give a scholarship to a high school student who is going into forestry field.


3) Update on Emerald Ash Borer (RFP): Hebert reported that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for ash
trees was completed and ready to send out. The format is the same as the Tree Removal Bid. The
proposal plan includes two years for removal of park row trees and three years for parks and also
includes tree plantings. The plantings have not been specified yet. A question was asked if the lowest
bidder has to be accepted for work and the answer is no – however – there needs to be
documentation as to why the bid was not selected.


The committee asked how the treated ash trees doing. Nelson stated that most were doing pretty
good and that a different chemical was used this year. Some of the chemicals used to treat the borer
were also killing off bugs that are beneficial to the trees.


4) Construction Contracts: Nelson stated that he had not received the information from the City of
Milwaukee but it will be received for the November meeting. Hebert stated that the Public Works
Committee was aware of the issue and had placed the item on their November agenda to be







addressed stating there needs to be better practices, communications with the contractors. The
contractors doing the street construction were notified and failed to “do no harm” and the damage
included private property trees and city park row trees. Nelson stated that proper tree plantings would
help as multiple trees in the park row are not the correct trees for the size of the area.


5) Approval of minutes from September 14, 2016 Meeting: Motion by Boersma, seconded by
Kvalheim to approve the minutes. Carried 4-0.


6) East Main Street Trees: Alderperson Majewski asked why there were so few trees on the north side
of E Main St but also didn’t agree with the tree selections that the city arborist suggested be planted as
this street is a main corridor into the city. Trees were removed during road construction that were too
large for the park row and would have been severely damaged during the project. Appropriate trees will
be planted during the week of October 17, 2016 in the park row and some larger trees on private
property.


7) Ord 10-2(d) for New Construction & New Development Plats: This ordinance was changed earlier
in the year but some of the language used was never brought back to the committee to be discussed
and now has become an issue. The ordinance should allow the developer to plant their own trees after
the city agrees with species and placement. Staff will work on the language changes to be reviewed by
the Tree committee.


Multiple other issues were brought up regarding tree plantings (i.e. Utilities helping with replacement
costs, discuss using bare root trees to help with costs and a site for wood storage).


8) 2016 Fall Tree Removal RFP: Hebert stated the bids were due Monday, October 17, 2016 and would
be taken to the Public Works meeting the next evening to be reviewed and awarded. The trees put on
the bid list were field verified. The company who supports are current tree inventory will be changing
their format. Staff is looking into a new vendor and perhaps redoing the inventory as it is very outdated.
Currently there is not enough manpower to get on a routine schedule of maintenance. The Tree
Commission made a recommendation to outsource updating the inventory and suggested
contacting Evan Slocum as he has worked with the city inventory in the past and has
knowledge about different programs.


9) Future Agenda Items: Construction Contracts (tree protection language), EAB RFP, Ord 10-2(d)
Language changes, Tree Inventory, Bare root trees for tree replacement planting and site to store
wood logs


Motion by Kvalheim, seconded by McBroom to adjourn the meeting at 5:55 p.m. Respectfully submitted 10/27/16,
Vickie Erdahl - Staff





		1a-COW October 6, 2016 Minutes.pdf

		1b-October 13, 2016 COW Minutes.pdf

		1c-COW 10-27-2016 Minutes.pdf

		4-October 11, 2016 Finance Minutes.pdf

		5-5-16 minutes.pdf

		09-14-16 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		10-4-2016 COA Minutes.pdf

		2016 09 21 APPROVED LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES.pdf

		TC Min October 2016.pdf






 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, November 1, 2016 @ 7:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2
nd


 Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council at 7:02 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that all twelve alderpersons were present. 


 


Kittleson asked the Council to look into participating at the Saturday downtown Trick or Treating for 


next year. 


 


Clerk Kropf explained that the Fall General Election is next Tuesday, November 8, 2016 and that in-


clerk’s absentee voting along with registering to vote can be completed through this Friday, November 


4, 2016. 


 


Engelberger read an email from Tonya Vike regarding the anti-bullying ordinance that the City recently 


passed. She thanked the Council for approving the anti-bullying ordinance. 


 


Minutes and Reports: No minutes or reports were entered onto the record. 


 


 


Public Comment Period:   


No person registered to speak. 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. October 25, 2016  Council Minutes 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the consent agenda, second by Jenson. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


PUBLIC HEARING: 2017 City of Stoughton Operating and Capital Budgets 
 


Finance Director Sullivan gave a detailed overview of the 2017 City Budget. She explained that the 


budget is balanced and includes the addition of an IT Department, an added Fleet Maintenance 


Employee, and the implementation of Phase II of the Springsted Wage Compensation Study. She noted 


that the City’s tax levy increased by 1.938% in net new construction and that the increase would actually 


allow the decrease of the City’s Tax rate by 1.93%. She noted that this increase allowed the Mill Rate 


decrease by $0.17, which means that the total tax decrease would be $16.67 per $100,000 valued home. 


  


 







 


 


Mayor Olson opened Public Hearing at 7:15 p.m. 


 


No persons registered to speak during the Public Hearing. 


 


Mayor Olson closed the Public Hearing at 7:15 p.m. and resumed the Common Council meeting. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-17-2016- To amend Section 62-2- Dumping in park row prohibited., to include language that 


would establish a time restriction for brush or leaves to be placed on the park row to no more 


than ten days prior to the scheduled brush collection by the city.   


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve O-17-2016, second by Swadley. Public Works Diretcor Hebert 


did note that leaves should be included in this ordinance to hinder citizens from keeping their 


leaves on the park row along with brush. Kittleson questioned about the pickup schedule and felt 


that the language should be within the ordinance. Majewski expressed concerns with including a 


pickup schedule within the ordinance because if the pickup schedule were to change, the Council 


would have to amend ordinance every time. Motion carried 11-1, with Kittleson voting noe. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-121-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to adopt the 2017 City of Stoughton 


Budget.  


 


Motion by Swadley, to approve R-121-2016, second by Lawrence. Boersma expressed concerns with 


the addition of the IT Department and would like to see an outside contract obtained rather than in 


house. He also spoke in opposition of the proposed Public Works building. Kittleson also spoke in 


opposition of the addition of the IT Department and encourages the City to seek an outside contract. He 


wanted to see that money be used to either fund another officer or an Economic Developer for the City. 


He also spoke to concerns of where the proposed Public Works building is going to be placed.  


 


Lawrence and Swadley spoke to the need of a City IT Department and noted that this will be the first 


year for this department. Swadley noted that for next year he would like to see more committee 


involvement with the budget process and to set goals as a Council along with an action plan to achieve 


those goals. Engelberger noted that he does support the budget, but for next year, would like to see the 


addition of a police officer and an economic developer. Motion carried on a roll call vote of 10-2, with 


Kittleson and Boersma voting noe. 


 


R-110-2016-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the implementation 


of Phase II of the Compensation Plan.  


 


Motion by Swadley, to approve R-110-2016, second by Lawrence. Swadley noted that this 


would allow every employee to be brought up by 2% on the wage scale and to bring three 


department heads to the mid-point range. Motion carried by a roll call vote 12-0. 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


R-122-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the 2017 Stoughton 


Utilities (SU) Budget and Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  


 


Motion by Swadley, to approve R-122-2016, second by Lawrence. No Council discussion 


occurred.  Motion carried on a roll call vote of 11-1, with Majewski voting noe. 


 


R-118-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a “Class B” Winery 


License to Mershonian Cidery, LLC, Aaron Bloomer, agent, d/b/a Mershon’s Cidery located at 


280 Business Park Cir #7.  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-118-2016, second by Truehl. Clerk Kropf noted that this 


type of license is new to the City and that before a business can apply for this type they must 


obtain a Winery Permit from the State. Engelberger noted that there were some contingencies 


from the Planning Department that need to be met before the license could be issued. Clerk 


Kropf noted that those contingencies had been met. Motion carried 11-1, with Boersma voting 


noe.  


 


R-119-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Class “B” Fermented 


Malt Beverage License and a “Class C” Wine License to Morelia’s Café, LLC, Jefte Galvan, 


agent, d/b/a Morelia’s Cafe located at 620 Nygaard St.  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-119-2016, second by Truehl. Engelberger stated that this 


license was before the Public Safety Committee and they recommended approval for this new 


business’s license. Motion carried 11-0, with Boersma abstaining. 


 


R-120-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue an Operator License to 


Mary Haug. 


  


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-120-2016, second by Truehl. Engelberger noted that the 


applicant did not appear and that results in an automatic denial. Motion failed 0-12. 


 


**The council may meet in closed session under section 19.85(1)(c) of the Wisconsin Statutes 


for the purpose of interviewing candidates for appointment to the position of city attorney. 


 


Motion by Swadley, to meet in closed session, second by Boersma. Motion carried by a roll call 


vote 11-1, with O’Connor voting noe. The Council went into closed session at 8:15 p.m. 


 


**The Council may reconvene in open session and take action on any matter discussed in 


closed session. 


 


Motion by Engelberger, to reopen into the Council meeting, second by Truehl. Motion carried 


12-0. 


 







 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to award the contract for legal services to Stafford & Rosenbaum, LLP, 


second by Jenson. Motion carried 10-0 with Kittleson abstaining and Johnson voting noe. 
 


 


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Johnson. Motion 


carried 12-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 9:04 p.m. 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Jefte Galvin for Morelia’s Cafe at 620 Nygaard Street,
Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission meets November 14, 2016


Fiscal Impact: None.


File Number: R-123-2016 Date Introduced: November 15, 2016


RECITALS


A. Jefte Galvin (the “Applicant”) is the owner or lessee of property located at 620 Nygaard Street in
the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”).


B. The Property is zoned Planned Business. Applicant has applied for a conditional use permit for
the Property authorizing Indoor Commercial Entertainment pursuant to Section 78-206(4)(h), in
order to operate a restaurant on the Property.


C. The City Plan Commission, after giving property notice, held a public hearing on the application
for the Conditional Use Permit on November 14, 2016, found that the proposed conditional use
meets the standards of Section 78-905 of the Stoughton Municipal Code, and recommended that
the application for a conditional use permit be granted.


D. The Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s findings and recommendations.


RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that a conditional use permit is granted
authorizing use of the Property for Indoor Commercial Entertainment pursuant to Section 78-206(4)(h), but
only for use as a restaurant.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Morelias CUP 620 Nygaard- Attorney Revised.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\11-14-16\Planning Materials\Morelias Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: November 7, 2016


To: Planning Commission and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the November 14, 2016 Planning Commission meeting and
November 15 Common Council Meeting.


Jefte Galvan requests a conditional use permit for an indoor commercial entertainment use
(restaurant) at 620 Nygaard Street.
A public hearing is scheduled for the November 14, 2016 Planning Commission meeting and due to
time constraints and changes to the Council meeting date this will also be on the Common Council
agenda for November 15, 2016. This request is for a conditional use permit to operate a restaurant
at 620 Nygaard Street. The previous conditional use permit has expired. No changes to the site are
planned. Staff recommends approval as presented.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday,
November 14, 2016 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor,
Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed Conditional Use Permit Application by
Jefte Galvan, for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant) at 620 Nygaard
Street, Stoughton.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at
608-646-0421


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published October 27, 2016 Hub
Published November 3, 2016 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Morelias CUP Notice 2016.doc































 


Planning
Water Resources
ParcelText
Parcels


House Number
Plat Labels
Tax Parcels


November 7, 2016
0 0.01 0.020.005 mi


0 0.02 0.040.01 km


1:558


 
 







Image capture: Oct 2015 © 2016 Google


Street View - Oct 2015


Stoughton, Wisconsin


637 Nygaard St


Page 1 of 2637 Nygaard St - Google Maps


11/7/2016https://www.google.com/maps/@42.923161,-89.2492134,3a,75y,219.04h,84.79t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sInG9tzZWMupwi3k7K...











CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


October 21, 2016
Jefte Galvan
1616 Kenilworth Court #7
Stoughton, WI. 53589


Dear Mr. Galvan:


I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use permit for Morelia’s Cafe, 620 Nygaard
Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 – application received 10/19/16. This is an existing site so many zoning
requirements have already been met.


1. The property at 620 Nygaard Street, Stoughton is zoned PB – Planned Business. An Indoor
Commercial Entertainment use such as a restaurant is allowable as a conditional principle land use.
A letter summarizing the proposed use has been provided. A conditional use procedural
checklist has also been provided and the fee has been paid. A public hearing is scheduled for
the November 14, 2016 Planning Commission meeting. You and/or a representative will need
to attend the meeting to present your request and answer questions. A recommendation will
be sent by the Planning Commission to the Common Council for review/approval of the
conditional use permit. The City Council may place conditions on the use related to the
operating hours; screening; lighting, etc…


2. Indoor Commercial Entertainment is defined as follows: Indoor commercial entertainment land
uses include all land uses which provide entertainment services primarily within an enclosed
building. Outdoor seating or patio areas associated with a proposed indoor commercial
entertainment land use shall be allowed subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such
proposed outdoor seating or patio area. Such activities often have operating hours which extend
significantly later than most other commercial land uses. Examples of such land uses include
restaurants, taverns, theaters, health or fitness centers, …
The proposed use meets this description.


3. The regulations pertaining to Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses are as follows:
• If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no customer


entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, of a residentially
zoned property. N/A


• Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of the property
abutting residentially zoned property. N/A


4. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Planned Business
which is consistent with the zoning and proposed use.


5. The parking requirement for Indoor Commercial Entertainment is one space per every three patron
seats or one space per three persons at maximum capacity of the establishment (whichever is







greater). We have been informed the building capacity is 120 people which requires 40
parking stalls. 41 are provided.


6. Handicap parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. This is expected.


7. Except for handicap parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet. This is expected.


8. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet. This is expected.


9. The site shall meet the off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705. Backing into or
from the street is not allowed.


10. All exterior trash storage areas shall be located within a gated enclosure which completely screens
the view a said trash. This is expected.


11. Required off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall not be used for snow storage. Snow
cannot be stored onsite which creates a vision problem for motorists/pedestrians.


12. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation. This is
expected


13. State of Wisconsin approved plans may be necessary prior to issuance of a building permit but are
not necessary to begin the City review process.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\620 nygaard street\morelias cafe review letter 16.doc





		5a-R-123-2016-Morelias CUP 620 Nygaard.pdf

		5b-Morelias CUP.pdf



